
I 

II 

III 

IV 

V 

VI 

VII 

VIII 

IX 

AGENDA 
DOWNERS GROVE LIQUOR COMMISSION 

DECEMBER 5, 2024 
CIVIC CENTER BETTY CHEEVER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

6:30P.M. 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes of November 7, 2024 Liquor Commission Meeting 

Application Hearing 

Everest Asian Fusion 
1550 75 th 

Class R-1 

Disciplinary Hearing 

Homewood Suites & Hampton Inn 
1500 Opus Place 

New Business 

Old Business 

Comments from the public 

Adjournment 

I lliquor\2024-Liq-Com\Agenda. 24112-05-24 



I. 

DOWNERS GROVE LIQUOR COMMISSION 
BETTY CHEEVER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

850 CURTISS STREET 

Thursday, November 7, 2024 

CALL TO ORDER bJ94~r 
Chairman Johnson called the November 7, 2024 Liquor Commission meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

STAFF: 

OTHERS: 

Mr. Dietrich, Ms. Kastory, Mr. Shah Chairman Johnson 

Mr. Fenton, Mr. Mehta, Ms. Saucedo 

Carol Kuchynka, Liaison to the Liquor Commission 

Prakash Patel, Asst. Village Attorney Brandan Rissman, Court Reporter 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Johnson asked for approval of the minutes for the October 3, 2024 Liquor Commission meeting 
and asked members if there were any corrections, changes or additions. 

Hearing no additional changes, corrections or additions, the October 3, 2024 minutes of the Liquor 
Commission meeting were approved as written. 

Chairman Johnson reminded those present that this evening's meeting was being recorded on 
Village-owned equipment. Staff was present to keep minutes for the record. 

IV. APPLICATION FOR LIQUOR LICENSE 

Chairman Johnson made the fo llowing statements: 

"The next order of business is to conduct a public hearing for a liquor license application . For the benefit 
of all present, I would like to state that this Commission does not determine the granting or denial of the 
issuance of any license. We may, at the end of each hearing, make a finding or recommendation with 
respect to the application. If necessary, the Commission may adjourn a hearing to a later date in order to 
have benefit of fu1ther infonnation." 

"At the conclusion of the hearing, the Commission will determine any recommendations it wishes to 
make to the Liquor Commissioner". 

"The Liquor Commissioner, who is the Mayor of Downers Grove, will, pursuant to Section 3-12 of the 
Ordinance, render decisions regarding issuance of available licenses." 

"Hearings by this Commission are held according to the following format: 1) reading of infonnation 
pertinent to the application, 2) comments from the applicant, 3) discussion by the Commission, 4) 
comments from staff, 5) comments from the public, and 6) motion and finding by the Commission." 



DG Food & Liquor Mart- 2027 Ogden Avenue 

Chairman Johnson stated that the next order of business was an application from DG 24, Inc. d/b/a DG 
Food & Liquor Ma1i located at 2027 Ogden Avenue. He stated that the applicant is seeking a Class "P-1 , 
full alcohol , off-premise consumption liquor license. 

Chairman Johnson asked that any individual(s) representing the applicant step forward and be seated. He 
asked that any individual(s) giving testimony, state and spell their name for the record, indicate their 
affiliation with the establishment and be sworn in by the court reporter. 

Mr. Prakash Patel was sworn in by the court reporter. 

Chairman Johnson asked Mr. Patel to explain his license request. 

Mr. Patel stated that he is the president DG 24, Inc. and was in the process of purchasing the existing DG 
Food & Liquor Mart. He stated he was seeking a liquor license to continue the existing operation. 

Chairman Johnson asked Mr. Patel if the sale/purchase was dependant on the receipt of a liquor license. 
Mr. Patel replied yes. 

Chairman Johnson asked for questions from the Commission. 

Ms. Kastory asked Mr. Patel if he planned to keep the existing staff. Mr. Patel replied no. He planned to 
operate the store with his wife for the first few years, get to know the business and then expand. He 
stated that staff are the current owners who will not be staying on. 

Ms. Kastory asked Mr. Patel if both he and his wife are BASSET certified. Mr. Patel replied that his 
wife has yet to be certified. Mr. Patel added that he is certified for both on- and off-premise 
consumption. 

Mr. Dietrich had no questions. 

Mr. Shah asked Mr. Patel about his relationship with Darien Tobacco, Wine & Liquor. Mr. Patel replied 
that location and license is operated under his wife's name. 

Mr. Shah asked Mr. Patel if they still own the other location. Mr. Patel replied yes. 

Mr. Shah asked Mr. Patel how they will be splitting time between the two stores. Mr. Patel stated that 
they have a manager in place at the Darien site. He stated that his cousin works there and noted that it is 
a family business. He added that they have operated the Darien location for the past 6 years. He stated 
that they saw another opportunity with this purchase of DG Food & Liquor. 

Mr. Shah asked Mr. Patel if just he and his wife will be working the Downers Grove store. Mr. Patel 
replied yes. He stated that they want to learn the ins and outs of this site for a few years before they hire 
on any staff. 

Mr. Shah asked if they have any systems to scan ids. Mr. Patel replied that there is a POS system that 
prompts the clerk to scan an id for tobacco, wine, beer or liquor sales. He stated that they plan to check 
ids for everybody. 



Mr. Shah stated that Downers Grove conducts control buys and sends in underage kids to test stores. He 
noted that excuses are given as to why a control buy is failed. He advised that the best system Mr. Patel 
can invest in is the people he hires. Mr. Patel stated he was aware of the violation at this location. He 
stated that it was part of the reason the current owner is selling as they do not have the right people on 
hand . Mr. Patel stated he will be sure that either he or his wife are there to manage all aspects of the 
location. He stated that he is investing a lot of money and does not want to be in jeopardy of losing his 
license or have legal troubles. 

Chairman Johnson thanked Mr. Patel for expanding his business to Downers Grove. He asked Mr. Patel 
about the POS system and if he was inheriting the existing system. Mr. Patel replied that the hardware 
will remain but advised that a new operating system software will be installed. He stated that all the data 
will be transferred from the current POS into the new system. 

Chairman Johnson asked Mr. Patel if there is a bypass button on the new POS system. Mr. Patel replied 
no. 

Chairman Johnson stated that Mr. Patel's temporary BASSET issued in late October was included with 
the materials. He asked Mr. Patel how long he has been certified . Mr. Patel replied two years but he 
could not locate the original one, so he completed the class again. 

Chairman Johnson asked Mr. Patel how often he will reinforce policy. Mr. Patel replied often as 
possible. He stated that he will ensure that employees follow the guidelines and check ids. He planned 
to re-summarize the policy once a month. 

Chairman Johnson noted that there are no employees other than Mr. Patel and his wife, but noted that he 
must still reinforce expectations so that there are no issues. 

Chairman Johnson asked if staff had any comments concerning the application. Ms. Kuchynka stated 
that factors affecting the finding or recommendation from this evenings meeting include receipt of an 
updated Certificate of Occupancy, insurance, receipt of the annual fee, satisfactory background checks 
and employee certifications. 

Chairman Johnson asked for comments from the public. There were none. 

Hearing the testimony given in this case, Chairman Johnson asked for a recommendation from the 
Commission concerning its finding of "qualified" or "not qualified" with respect to their request for a 
Class P-1 liquor license. 

MR. SHAH MOVED TO FIND DG 24, INC. D/B/A DG FOOD & LIQUOR MART LOCATED AT 
2027 OGDEN AVENUE QUALIFIED FOR A CLASS "P-1", FULL ALCOHOL, OFF-PREMISE 
CONSUMPTION LIQUOR LICENSE. MR. DIETRICH SECONDED. 

Aye: Mr. Shah, Mr. Dietrich, Ms. Kastory, Chairman Johnson 

Nay: None 

Abstain: None 

MOTION CARRIED: 4:0:0 



V. NEW BUSINESS 

Chairman Johnson asked if there was any discussion, update from staff or comments from the 
Commission regarding any new business. 

Ms. Kuchynka stated that there will be a meeting held on December 5th . Ms. Kastory advised that she 
would not be able to attend. 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 

Chairman Johnson asked if there was any discussion, update from staff or comments from the 
Commission regarding any old business. 

Ms. Kuchynka referred to the month end report. 

Ms. Kuchynka advised that annual liquor license renewals have been finalized. She provided a list of 
current liquor license holders and an updated Classification Chart to the Commission. She noted that 
there are currently 104 license holders. 

Ms. Kuchynka noted that the CVS on Ogden closed and Beggars Pizza opted not to renew due to lack of 
liquor sales. She noted that DG Food Mart did have to renew, despite the applicant being present this 
even mg. 

Ms. Kuchynka stated that the Mayor indicated his intent to issue the license to Comer Pantry. She stated 
that the new license was issued in late October. 

Mr. Shah asked if the former license to DG Food Mart will result in a termination of that license while 
paying the full fee. Ms. Kuchynka replied that the Village does not issue reimbursements. She stated 
that Comer Pantry and the 7-Eleven paid pro-rated licenses for the remainder of the 23/24 year and 
renewed immediately at issuance. She stated that pro-rated license fees are only issued after May. She 
stated that license fees are not reimbursed regardless what time of year a licensee leaves. 

Ms. Kuchynka stated that once a new licensee is ready to take over, an order of forfeiture will be issued to 
the existing license so there is no disruption in service. 

Ms. Kuchynka advised that information on inquiries she received appears in each month end report. 

Mr. Shah asked Ms. Kuchynka if she has heard any more information on the brewery inquiry. Ms. 
Kuchynka replied no. 

Ms. Kuchynka noted that the Mayor indicated his intent to issue a license to Bubbly Side of Life. She 
expected that to open at the end of November. 

VII. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

There were none. 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

Concluding business for the evening, Chairman Johnson called for a motion to adjourn. Mr. Shah moved 
to adjourn the November 7, 2024 meeting. The meeting was adjourned by acclimation at 6:50 p.m. 



VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE 

REPORT FOR THE LIQUOR COMMISSION 

DECEMBER 5, 2024 AGENDA 

SUBJECT: TYPE: SUBMITTED BY: 

Licensee: Everest Fusion, Inc. Application for Class R-1 liquor 
D/B/A: Everest Fusion license Carol Kuchynka 
Address: 1550 W. 75th Street, Liaison to the Liquor Commission 
Unit C 

REQUEST 
The applicant is requesting a Class R-1 liquor license for Everest Fusion located at 1550 W. 75th Street. 

NOTICE 
The request has been filed in conformance with applicable procedural and public hearing requirements. 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Officer(s) : Wei Zheng , President 

Stockholder( s) : Wei Zheng - 100% 

Manager: 

Licensee: 

Wei Zheng 

Everest Fusion, Inc. d/b/a Everest Fusion 
1550 W. 75th Street 
Downers Grove, IL 60516 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

EXISTING LAND USE: Commercial 
PROPERTY SIZE: (11,270 square feet) 

ANALYSIS 

Submittals 
This report is based on the following documents, which are on file with the Legal Department: 

1. Application for Liquor License 
2. Lease 
3. Menus 
4. Liquor Handling Manual 
5. Floor Plan 



Project Description 
The applicant is requesting a Class R-1 liquor license for the operation of a restaurant located at 1550 W. 75th 
Street. 

Compliance with the liquor ordinance 
The establ ishment is defined as: 

Restaurant. A place kept , used, maintained, advertised or held out to the public as a place with the service of 
food and drink, and where meals are regularly served, without sleeping accommodations, and where adequate 
provision is made for sanitary kitchen and dining room equipment and capacity and a sufficient number of 
employees to prepare and serve food for its customers. It being the intent of this paragraph that the primary 
business conducted on premises to be licensed as restaurants hereunder shall be the service of food and 
drink. Food service shall be available at all times liquor sales are being conducted. Menus shall be on the 
table, presented to each patron as they are seated or be posted in such a manner to be easily readable by the 
patrons of the restaurant. Provided, the kitchen may not cease operating prior to one (1) hour before closing . 
Bar/lounge seating shall be no more than twenty percent (20%) of the total seating provided for patrons of the 
establishment. 

License conditions 

"R-1" Restaurant licenses shall authorize the sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption on the licensed premises 
and the retail sale of beer, wine and mixed drinks for consumption off the licensed premises pursuant to 
DGMC Section 3.33.6 herein, where the primary business is that of a restaurant, as defined herein. Such 
licensees may provide delivery service pursuant to DGMC Section 3.33.4. 

Public Safety Requirements 
Fire Prevention and Community Development Department will need to conduct a walkthrough of the facility. A 
Certificate of Occupancy for remodeling has been applied for and is pending. Health Department approval is 
requ ired. 

Factors Affecting Finding or Recommendation 
Certificate of Occupancy, insurance, annual fee , satisfactory background checks and employee certifications. 

Recommendation 

Based upon testimony presented at the December 5, 2024 application hearing, if said application is consistent 
with the Liquor Code and meets the criteria of the classification, staff requests the following : 

A recommendation from the Commission concerning its finding of "qualified" or "not qualified" with regard to 
their Class R-1 liquor license application, along with any conditions and/or restrictions with respect to this 
applicant. 



downers.us 

CIVIC CENTER 
850 Curtiss St. 
Downers Grove, IL 
60515-4782 

MAIN 630 434 .5500 
POLICE 630 434 .5600 

FIRE DEPT 
Administration 
5420 Main St. 
Downers Grove, IL 
60515-4834 

630.434.5980 

PUBLIC WORKS 
5101 WalnutAve. 
Downers Grove, IL 
60515-4046 

630.434.5460 

November 14, 2024 

Mr. Peter Zheng 
Everest Fusion, Inc. 
1550 W. 75th Street, Unit C 
Downers Grove, IL 60516 

RE: Application for Class R-1 Liquor License 
Everest Fusion 

Via Email 
Efusion l 550@gmaiI.com 

1550 W 75th Street, Unit C, Downers Grove, IL 60516 

Dear Mr. Zheng: 

The Liquor Commission of the Village of Downers Grove will meet on Thursday, December 5, 
2024, at 6:30 p.m. in the Civic Center Betty Cheever Council Chambers located at 850 Curtiss 
Street, Downers Grove, Illinois, to consider applications for liquor licenses. A public hearing 
will be held on your application as a part of this meeting. 

I encourage you to attend this public hearing at which time you will have an opportunity to 
comment in support of your application. In addition, the Liquor Commission will be particularly 
interested in examining your liquor handling manual and in hearing about your floor plan and 
training procedures as they relate to the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

You may withdraw your application at any time prior to the public hearing. 

If you have any questions, please contact me at (630) 434-5542. 

uchynka 
to the Liquor Commission 

E OF DOWNERS GROVE 

a\Everest Fusionlapp-hrg.nts 





















   

     
    

              
  

          
   

             

               
          

   
              

             

    
  

 
  

 

 
  

    

  
  

      
         









 
    

    
 

     
    

  

          
 

 

            
               

                 
                

            

              
                

    
       

        

   
      

 

  

   

          

 
   

        
    

         

 

 

 

 

 











   

    

       

   

   



 
 
 

 

 

 

  

        
      

                 
             
                  

         
             

             
             

  
             

                
              

 
          

           
        

           
               

    
             

 

 
             

            

              
                  

   
           

 



  

         

          

       

       

              

          

          

             

     

                



    
 

 
 

       
              

       
     
    
      

    

 
 
  
 

 
 

          
        
          

         
       
          

        

    

                  
                   

                     
      

                 
                 
            

                
                 

                 
     



  
     
                 

                    
                  

        
 

   

   

 

   

   

  

 
        

        

         

        

        

        

                 
                  

      
                   

                     
                    

                  
        

       
                

               
                  
               
                    

      
                 

                
            

                
 

                
                   

              

     
                  

                
               

               
             
     

                  
                



     
              

              
            
              

      
                  

                 
               

      
                 

                  
          

 
  
     

 

     

   

 



    
   

     
         

           
            
             

         
          

             
             

          
    

           
   

          
     

      

    
          

            
           

         
         

 















 
 

 

   
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

   
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
  



Village of Downers Grove 
Report for the Liquor Commission 

December 5, 2024 Agenda 

Subject: Type: Submitted By: 

Licensee: Homewood Suites & Violation: 3-25(a) Sale of Liquor 
Hampton Inn to a Minor Carol Kuchynka 
Address: 1500 Opus Place Liaison to the Liquor Commission 

Item 
The licensee has been charged with a violation of Section 3-25(a) of the Liquor Control Ordinance which 
prohibits the sale of alcohol to a minor. 

Notice 
Notice of this hearing (attached) was served upon the Licensee by certified mail to its registered agent and by 
personal delivery to the licensed premises. 

General Information 

Licensee: DG Hotel Group, LLC 
d/b/a Homewood Suites & Hampton Inn 
1500 Opus Place 
Downers Grove, IL 60515 

Registered Agent: Northwest Registered Agent Services, Inc. 

Manager: Vincent Pellegrini 

Date License Issued: June 14, 2024 

Histor 
See attached Control Buy Record 

Aggravating Circumstances 
Under 21 Identification shown 
License held for less than one (1) year 

Recommendation 
Based upon testimony presented at the December 5, 2024 disciplinary hearing staff requests the following: 

A recommendation from the Commission concerning its finding of "guilty" or "not guilty" of a violation of Section 
3.25(a) of the Liquor Control Ordinance. 



Village of Downers Grove 
Control Buy Attempt Record 

Homewood Suites & Hampton Inn 
1500 Opus . 

Class: H License Issued: 6/14/24 

Control Buy Passed Contro l Buy Fail Suspension Dates Fine Paid Fee Paid 

9/1 8/24 PENDING 



downers.us 

CIVIC CENTER 
850 Curtiss St. 
Downers Grove, IL 
60515-4782 

MAIN 630.434.5500 
POLICE 630.434 .5600 

FIRE DEPT 
Administration 
5420 Main St. 
Downers Grove, IL 
60515-4834 

630.434.5980 

PUBUC WORKS 
5101 WalnutAve. 
Downers Grove, IL 
60515-4046 

630.434.5460 

* AMENDED NOTICE OF HEARING* 

October 30, 2024 

Homewood Suites & Hampton Inn 
Vincent Pellegrini, Liquor Manager 
1500 Opus Place 
Downers Grove, IL 60515 

Re: Liquor License # 460; DG Hotel Group, LLC d/b/a Homewood Suites & Hampton 
Inn, 1500 Opus Place, Downers Grove, Illinois 

Dear Mr. Pellegrini: 

You are hereby notified as the Liquor Manager of a Class "H-1" Liquor License # 460 of the 
Village of Downers Grove, that the Liquor Commission shall hold a public hearing on 
Thursday, December 5, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. in the Betty Cheever Council Chambers of the 
Downers Grove Civic Center. 

The purpose of the hearing will be to determine whether the said liquor license held by DG 
Hotel Group, LLC should be revoked, suspended and/or whether.licensee should be fined by 
reason of the alleged sale of alcoholic liquor (a bottle of Miller Lite beer) by employee, 
Erika Castellano, on Wednesday, September 18, 2024 at approximately 5:21 p.m., to EH, a 
person under the age of twenty-one (21) years, in violation of Section 3-25 of the Downers 
Grove Municipal Code and Ill. Comp. Stat., Ch. 235, Sec. 5/6-16. At the hearing the licensee 
will be given the opportunity to appear and defend against such charge. 

Prior to the date of the hearing, you or your attorney, if any, should contact the undersigned 
at (630) 434-5504 or Carol Kuchynka at (630)434-5542, to discuss necessary procedures at 
the hearing. 

Sincerely, 

VILL~~F DOWNER~~ ~ 

.~L-- / '--
Brandan Rissman 
Village Prosecutor 

cc: Carol Kuchynka, Liaison to the Liquor Commission 
Irene Bahr, Esq. 

llwp\lqr.24\Homewood Suites & Hampton Innlntshrg-lm-AMD 



downers.us 

CIVIC CENTER 
850 Curtiss St. 
Downers Grove, IL 
60515-4782 

MAIN 630.434.5500 
POLICE 630.434 .5600 

FIRE DEPT 
Administration 
5420 Main St. 
Downers Grove, IL 
60515-4834 

6-3-0.434.5980 

PUBUC WORKS 
5101 Walnut Ave. 
Downers Grove, IL 
60515-4046 

630.434.5460 

* AMENDED NOTICE OF HEARING* 

October 30, 2024 

Northwest Registered Agent Services, Inc. 
Registered Agent for DG Hotel Group, LLC 
2501 Chatham Rd. , Ste. N 
Springfield, IL 62704 

Re: Liquor License #460; DG Hotel Group, LLC dlb/a Homewood Suites & Hampton 
Inn, 1500 Opus Place, Downers Grove, Illinois 

To Whom it May Concern: 

You are hereby notified as the Registered Agent of a Class "H-1" Liquor License# 460 of 
the Village of Downers Grove, that the Liquor Commission shall hold a public hearing on 
Thursday, December 5, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. in the Betty Cheever Council Chambers of the 
Downers Grove Civic Center. 

The purpose of the hearing will be to determine whether the said liquor license held by DG 
Hotel Group, LLC should be revoked, suspended and/or whether licensee should be fined by 
reason of the alleged sale of alcoholic liquor (a bottle of Miller Lite beer) by employee, 
Erika Castellano, on Wednesday, September 18, 2024 at approximately 5:21 p.m., to EH, a 
person under the age of twenty-one (21) years, in violation of Section 3-25 of the Downers 
Grove Municipal Code and Ill. Comp. Stat., Ch. 235, Sec. 5/6-16. At the hearing the licensee 
will be given the opportunity to appear and defend against such charge. 

Prior to the date of the hearing, you or your attorney, if any, should contact the undersigned 
at (630) 434-5504 or Carol Kuchynka at (630)434-5542, to discuss necessary procedures at 
the hearing. 

Sincerely, 

VILLAGEOFDO~~ROVE 

~ / L . 
Brandan Rissman 
Village Prosecutor 

cc: Carol Kuchynka, Liaison to the Liquor Commission 
Irene Bahr, Esq. 

I \wp\lqr.24\Homewood Suites & Hampton lnnlntshrg-ra-AMD 


	12.05.24
	App-_Redacted
	Staff Report



